
Clarification NO. 1 

 

Ancillary Sewer Construction Program 

Central Area 

PN 7131 

SPECIFICATION NO. 129733 

RFQ NO. 4829 

 

For which bids will be opened in the office of the Department of Procurement Services, 

Room 103, Chicago, Illinois, 60602 on April 2, 2015 

at 11:00 a.m. Central Time: 

 

CLARIFICATION NUMBER 1 

  
1. Question: In book 2 pgs (15-16) Time of Completion/Punch list Time of 

completion.  Is the 30 calendar days in addition to the time allowed per sub order 

as shown in Table A (Generalized Assembly Program Production Rates)? 

 

Answer: The Punchlist must be completed within 30 days of transmittal of the 

final Punchlist to the contractor.  The Punchlist will be transmitted upon 

completion of the work.   The work must be completed as specified under Table A 

on pages 15 and 16 in book 2.   

 

2. Question: In book 3 pg 19 Method of Payment Bid Item 1D – Field Office states: 

“This item must include all costs for establishing, furnishing, maintaining, and 

removing the field office and accessories per month for the exclusive use of the 

Commissioner for the duration of the sub-order and must be in accordance with 

applicable provisions as specified in this item.”  Please clarify that the sub order 

will be a separate sub-order  for the office only, not that we will have to find and 

set up a field office for each work sub-order 

 

Answer: Under the current Ancillary contract there is 1 field office for the entire 

Central Area Ancillary Program and it is a separate sub order for office payment 

only.  It is not anticipated that there will be a need for more than 1 field office.  If 

more than 1 field office is needed it will be paid per office/per month.   

 

3. Question: Book 3 pg 20 Item 1F – Emergency Site Securing Description states” 

At the request of the commissioner the Contractor will mobilize sufficient labor, 

material or equipment to secure and maintain a job location (for example steel 

plates).  This work must be completed within 24 hours of notification unless 

approved by the Commissioner.”  The Method of payment states “…This item 

must include all costs for providing materials, labor, equipment and services to 

secure and maintain a site as specified in this item.”  Please clarify this item.  Will 

we be paid mobilization?  If we are to supply material for this item, for example 

steel plates, how many? Does this include traffic control? Will we be paid traffic 

control?  What if barrier wall is needed?  Backfilling of hole?  If all labor is 

included, and the work needs to be completed in 24 hours, does this mean we will 

not have to come back out and maintain the plates?  Will the department handle 

the CDOT tickets for placing plates without a permit? 



Answer: The intent of this item is to safely secure the site typically due to a 

collapsed sewer, man hole, or catch basin until an investigation can be made and 

the extents of the repair are determined.  Once a resolution to the issue is 

finalized, work to repair the sewer or structure can begin.  Payment for 

mobilization will be based on the final sub order amount as specified under item 

1A, 1B, and 1C in Book 3 pages 17 and 18.    The number of steel plates needed 

will be dependent on the size of the area to be secured.  Traffic Control will be 

paid if the Commissioner determines that it is necessary to restrict traffic lanes or 

close the street.  If plates cannot safely secure the area of the collapse, barrier wall 

may be needed and is included in the traffic control item.  Backfilling of the hole 

is not anticipated to be needed.  If it becomes necessary to backfill the hole the 

contractor will be compensated.  The plates, if needed, must be placed in 

accordance with CDOT regulations.  Any maintenance needed to maintain the 

materials and the safety of the site will be included in this item until an 

investigation and determination of the repair can be made.  Permits must be 

obtained by the contractor as specified by the CDOT regulations.  DWM will 

assist the contractor in acquiring an emergency permit in order to place the plates 

as directed.   

 

4. Question:  Book 3 pg (20-22) Televised Inspection of Sewers and Sewer 

Structures and Work Area:  Is the item to be used for televising the work prior and 

post on a existing term agreement project, or is it to investigate problems in areas 

that a collapse or blockage is suspected?  Please clarify that this item does not 

include cleaning of the sewers.  Will we be paid for post video of the sewers 

installed in this contract? 

 

Answer: Item 2A - Initial Investigation Video is intended to be used to 

investigate sewers and structures to determine collapses and the extent of repairs 

needed.  This item will also be used for televising existing sewers to determine 

the locations of private drains when the proposed sewer will not be located within 

the trench of the existing sewer.   

Item 2B - Post Construction Video is intended to be used after construction of 

proposed sewers and sewer structures to document the condition of the sewer and 

for approval by the Commissioner of said sewers and structures.   

The contractor will be required to flush the sewers to remove light accumulations 

of debris.  Any removal beyond a light accumulation that cannot be removed by 

flushing will be paid for separately.   

 

 

5. Question: Book 3 pg 37 Item 6 – Pipe and Structure Excavation and Backfill 

Rules Concerning Utilities 2. States: “When excavating machines are used to 

excavate for sewers, all utilities crossing the sewer trench will be left in place.”  

In the previous contract it was stated that when installing sewer greater than 3’ 

I.D. that the utilities crossing the trench would either be abandoned or removed at 

no expense to the contractor.   Please clarify that existing utilities will not be 

removed or relocated for both sewer and or sewer structures if they cross the 

excavation. 

 



Answer: The utilities that cross the sewer trench will be left in place for all pipe 

sizes.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to coordinate with each utility to 

support the utilities that cross the trench.   

 

6. Question: Book 3 pg 37 Item 6 – Pipe and Structure Excavation and Backfill 

Rules Concerning Utilities 4. States :  ‘…The contractor when so directed must 

leave in place such sheeting and bracing as may be necessary to protect the utility.  

The contractor will be paid for such sheeting and bracing in accordance with the 

unit prices as set forth in the Contract Proposal.”  As there is no longer a steel or 

wood sheeting left in place item, how will this be paid?  T&M?  The sheeting left 

in place in other parts of the specs as well. 

 

Answer: Any sheeting that the Commissioner directs the contractor to leave in 

place will be paid for under T&M. 

 

7. Question: Book 3 pg 41 Item 6 – Pipe and Structure Excavation and Backfill 

Rules Concerning Utilities Abandoned Streetcar Tracks states: “The equivalent 

volume will be deducted from the excavation and backfill volume” Please clarify 

that the volume deducted would be the actual volume of the rail and ties only. 

 

Answer: When railroad tracks are encountered the volume deducted will be the 

total cubic volume from the top of the pavement to the bottom of the tie.   

 

8. Question: Book 3 pg. 42 Item 6 – Pipe and Structure Excavation and Backfill 

Rules Concerning Utilities Measurement states: “pipe excavation and backfill will 

be paid for when the limits of excavation extends from manhole to manhole. – 

The pay quantity for the excavation of a given structure will be no more than the 

excavated volume of an area 48” from the outside of the structure and no more for 

an 8’ section of pipe coming out of the structure.”  This statement is confusing.  

Please clarify. 

 

Answer: Structure excavation and backfill will be paid for performing the 

following:  Point repairs that are not manhole to manhole.  Installing earth 

retention systems for constructing tumbling basins, cast in place structures and 

connecting to existing trunk sewers.   

Structure excavation and backfill will be no more than the excavated volume of 

an area 48" from the outside of the tumbling basin or cast in place structure.  A 

maximum of 8’ of pipe from the upstream portion of the tumbling basin or cast in 

place structure will be paid as structure excavation. 

 

9. Question: Book 3 pg 77 Item 26 –Hot Mix Asphalt Binder and Surface Course 

Construction states “Base: Supply and install base material, including removal 

and disposal of existing material, as required by the City of Chicago.  Base 

material must consist of clean, hard well-graded sand and gravel …”  Please 

clarify that this item is not in place of Item 25 Subbase Granular Material. 

 

Answer: Sub-base that is installed as required will be paid for under Item 25, 

Sub-base Granular Material. 

 



10. Question: Book 3 pg 80 Item 27 – PCC Pavement and Protective Coat 

Description states: “This item includes all costs associated with providing 

formwork and installing Portland cement concrete pavement and protective coat 

and also providing, installing, and removing temporary cold patch in accordance 

with the specification herein.”  Please clarify if the temporary cold patch will be 

paid under Bid Item 26M – Temporary Cold Patch, or if it will be incidental to 

Item 27 – Portland Cement Concrete Pavement and Protective Coat. 

 

Answer: All cold patch placed under this contract will be paid for under item 

26M Temporary Cold Patch. 

 

11. Question: Book 3 pg 93-94 Item 35 – Water Main Support Structures:  I was 

unable to find a detail for the watermain support structures.  Can a detail of each 

type of support structure be provided? 

 

Answer: See attachment for detail of each type of water main support. 

 

12. Question: Book 3 pgs 95-96 Item 37 – Special Soils Waste Removal and 

Disposal.  Please clarify the difference between Waste Characterization Analysis 

(which includes taking a soil bore / sample) and Soil Boring (which includes 

taking a soil bore).  Also please clarify if the soil boring item includes taking a 

max of six borings, if we will get paid for each boring as stated in item 37E.   

 

Answer: Waste Characterization Analysis will not include soil borings.  Soil 

borings will be paid for as an each item and will include a maximum of 6 soil 

borings per sub order project location.   

 

13. Question: Book 3 pg 116 Item 44 – Railroad Track Removal.  In the pipe and 

structure ex item it was stated that we were to remove the volume of the railroad 

track.  Item 45 states that we are to remove and dispose of all materials that 

constitute the existing pavement and track structures.  Please clarify if pavement 

removal is incidental to this item.  If it is please clarify how we will be paid for 

removal of the fill above the tracks below the pavement, if any. 

 

Answer: Railroad Track Removal will include all materials from the top of the 

pavement to the bottom of the ties, including the fill above the tracks and below 

the pavement.  This cubic volume will be deducted from the excavation and fill 

items in the contract and paid for as Railroad track removal. 

 

End of Clarification #1 


